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THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME A PART OF THE SOLICITATION
AND MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED


Request for Proposal RFP-25-088 – End Point Hardware and Lifecycle Services - dated September 25, 2025


CLARIFICATIONS:

The deadline for submittals for this solicitation has been extended to 2:00 p.m. Wednesday October 29, 2025.

El Paso County will only accept electronic bid proposals submitted through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing system.  A Submittal Log will be posted after the County has had an opportunity to review and verify the submittals offered to the County.

[bookmark: _Hlk153438461]The original Offer must be received before the due date and time through an electronic package transmitted through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing system.  The Vendor is responsible for ensuring its Response is posted in its entirety by the due date and time outlined in the solicitation document.  No allowances will be provided to those Vendors whose submittal is not uploaded prior to the due date and time outlined in the solicitation.

If the submittal arrives late and/or is not uploaded in its entirety, it will not be included in the electronic lockbox. 
[bookmark: _Hlk153438446]ADMINISTRATION:

· Responses should follow the Response Format on pages 16-17 and include all responses to all mandatory requirements. 
· We will be verifying submittals include the following: 
· Submittal properly acknowledged (Cover Sheet)
· Addendum acknowledged 
· Proprietary/Confidential Statement
· Vendor Information Form
· Exhibits 1-4
· Attachment C – Response Sheet
· Attachment D – Pricing Sheet

If a submittal is missing any of the above-mentioned documentation the submittal may be returned to the vendor as non-responsive and be deemed ineligible to participate.

RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS:

1.) Concerning pricing adjustments (Govt Tariffs as an example). Please explain what is EPC requiring the vendor to show that the tariffs are detrimental to the vendor? 

1a.) There is no preferred format for information regarding justification for pricing changes requested outside of the optional renewal period. A contracted vendor facing detrimental loss to their business by maintaining pricing will need to provide clear documentation demonstrating this inability to maintain pricing. Please also refer to the term “OPTION TO RENEW FOR SUBSEQUENT YEARS (MAINTAINING SAME PRICES” on page 2 of RFP-25-088 for further information on pricing variations between terms. 

2.) Can you please confirm that in addition to the thin clients you would also like a full VDI setup similar to Omnissa Horizon to be included in the proposal? 

2a.) We would like to explore options for this. We have VMware and the capability/licensing for Hyper-V in the environment and need to determine what makes the most sense for the County.

3.) Can you confirm what VDI software is being used for these thin clients to connect to? Examples – Omnissa Horizon, Citrix, Parallels, etc. 

3a.) None exists today—this would be a new design/installation for a thin client environment. EPC would provide the infrastructure to support the backend; we would want the partner to help use design/configure the infrastructure to deliver the thin clients.

4.) • How many users in all will be utilizing the VDI system? (Looking for the maximum value) • How many users will be logging into the VDI system concurrently? (Looking for the maximum value) • Can you please break down the total number of users into quantities that would fit in the following categories? o Task users – Users that utilize the system for one or two simple tasks using low resource applications. An example would be a user who only uses a website to enter in data. o Advanced users – Users that utilize multiple “normal” applications. An example would be a user who opens outlook for email and works on normal-sized office documents throughout the day, occasionally using a web browser and other standard applications. o Power Users – Users that utilize very resource-intensive applications. An example of these sorts of users would be engineers using CAD software alongside all of the more standard applications. • Do you have any estimations on workstation base image sizes, or should we use general industry standards? • Are GPUs required for any of the users? If so, what percentage of the users will require them?

4a.) Please see responses to each question below. 

How many users in all will be utilizing the VDI system? (Looking for the maximum value) 
EPC Response: We are considering about 200-250 user maximum.

How many users will be logging into the VDI system concurrently? (Looking for the maximum value). 
EPC Response: It could be up to the maximum at any point, but the odds are we would be seeing 50-75% at any given time.

Can you please break down the total number of users into quantities that would fit in the following categories?
· Task users – Users that utilize the system for one or two simple tasks using low resource applications. An example would be a user who only uses a website to enter in data.
· EPC Response: 75%
· Advanced users – Users that utilize multiple “normal” applications. An example would be a user who opens outlook for email and works on normal-sized office documents throughout the day, occasionally using a web browser and other standard applications.
· EPC Response: 15%
· Power Users – Users that utilize very resource-intensive applications. An example of these sorts of users would be engineers using CAD software alongside all of the more standard applications. 
· EPC Response:10%
Do you have any estimations on workstation base image sizes, or should we use general industry standards?
EPC Response: Use industry standards for now, but the vase majority of the end points today have 256GB hard drives in them so we do not think that these images would be very large.

Are GPUs required for any of the users? If so, what percentage of the users will require them? 
EPC Response: 10% potentially; we have some users that use AutoCAD and GIS (ESRI) type software.



5.) • Are you expecting to manage users’ VDI workstations individually, where each user has a static VM that is only theirs and can have personalized applications installed for them? Or do you require dynamic pools, where users may receive a different or even newly generated workstation each time they log in, with tools in place to dynamically generate the correct customization and application setup required for that specific user? • Does the datacenter hardware for the VDI system need to include racks, or will this go into existing 4-post racks? • What sort of power is available for the VDI datacenter equipment? Voltage, plug type, etc. • What type of networking is available for the VDI datacenter equipment? 10Gb, 25Gb, etc? If 10 Gb, is it fiber or 10GBASET? o Depending on the size of the deployment, the solution may include its own switching. What sort and quantities of higher speed uplink ports would be available on the current datacenter core? • What connection protocol(s) need to be supported by the thin clients? These protocols are determined by the VDI software being used. 

5a.) Please see responses for each question below.

Are you expecting to manage users’ VDI workstations individually, where each user has a static VM that is only theirs and can have personalized applications installed for them? Or do you require dynamic pools, where users may receive a different or even newly generated workstation each time they log in, with tools in place to dynamically generate the correct customization and application setup required for that specific user? 
EPC Response: We have use cases for both. For example, with some of the internal departments, static VMs such that the users retain all settings make sense. For public terminals, dynamic pools fit well whereas a base load of applications is “set”, but none of the changes or files created during the session are retained and they are brought back to baseline with every subsequent log in.

Does the datacenter hardware for the VDI system need to include racks, or will this go into existing 4-post racks? • What sort of power is available for the VDI datacenter equipment? Voltage, plug type, etc. • What type of networking is available for the VDI datacenter equipment? 10Gb, 25Gb, etc? If 10 Gb, is it fiber or 10GBASET? o Depending on the size of the deployment, the solution may include its own switching. What sort and quantities of higher speed uplink ports would be available on the current datacenter core? • What connection protocol(s) need to be supported by the thin clients? These protocols are determined by the VDI software being used. 
EPC Response: EPC would provide all of the above including the server/storage/network infrastructure. EPC owns the fiber between all of the county buildings so the speeds can be maintained as needed. As this is a new deployment, the discovery/design phase would determine the needs and any configurations required.

6.) • In order to meet the requested procurement, lifecycle services and delivery of equipment listed in the rfp, will the county be willing to provide quarterly forecasted procurement quantities, in order to best facilitate the county's ordering and deployment needs? If forecasting is feasible but preferred in a different timeframe, please advise.

6a.) EPC typically knows on an annual basis how many machines and types as well as the departments and locations involved in any particular year’s refresh and thus we can provide those. However, as part of the RFP, the expectation is the awarded partner will maintain those lists after the first year with input/guidance as needed from EPC.

7.) • Is the county open to considering AMD as a processor option for all or any of the desktops, laptops, workstations, etc listed in the rfp?

7a.) We have had performance issues with AMD in the past (as recent as 3 years ago) and therefore we are only considering Intel CPUs. 

8.) • For the laptop options, is the county open to any ARM-based processors units?

8a.) No; the CPUs must be Intel.
 
9.) • Concerning the warranty options, does the county require, On-site or Offsite Repair, Accidental Damage Protection, Hard Drive Retention, and/or specific repair SLA's?

9a.) Offsite repair is acceptable unless the awarded partner has the capacity to perform the repairs onsite. We have performed studies within the county and ADP does not make fiscal sense for us. The hard drives will have to be securely wiped or shredded with a certificate of destruction provided. We have loaner machines so as long as the repair time generally does not exceed 1 week, it is acceptable.

10.) • Is the county wanting to have AI-enabled and/or supported systems for the hardware requested?

10a.) Most modern machines have AI capabilities, however, there is a Colorado law related to AI and the county is in the process of developing AI policies to comply with those laws. 

11.) • For the "Enhanced Laptop" option and request for including of discrete graphic card options, can the county provide the applications to be ran by such users, in order to determine best recommended card options?

11a.) We have some 3D applications such as AutoCAD and ESRI (GIS Mapping software). 

12.) • For the "Executive Laptop" option, does the county prefer a clamshell unit, 2-in-1 laptop or detachable tablet?

12a.) We would like to see options for both. We typically deploy clamshell style, but we have had some execs request the detachable tablet model. 

13.) • Can the county provide more information regarding types or specifications around the headsets, cameras, and workstation monitor arms? Example, o Headsets - What type of headsets specifics are required?  Wired or Wireless?  Mic Requirements?  Noise Cancellation Requirements?  Phone or collaboration software support requirements? o Cameras -  Needed resolution?  Background Noise Technology?  Auto-framing?  USB connect? o Monitor Arms -  Stand and/or clamp-style?

13a.) Please see responses to each question below. 

o Headsets - What type of headsets specifics are required?  Wired or Wireless?  Mic Requirements?  Noise Cancellation Requirements?  Phone or collaboration software support requirements? 
EPC Response: Both wired and wireless headsets should be part of the offering as there are different use cases for both. They should be noise cancelling as they are used in group (cubicle) environments for most of the time. They must be compatible with all common collaborative tools such as MS Team, Cisco Webex, Zoom, etc. and support the features of those tools.

o Cameras -  Needed resolution?  Background Noise Technology?  Auto-framing?  USB connect? 
EPC Response: The RFP states 720p minimum resolution, but 1080p resolution should be the standard at this point. They must be compatible with all common collaborative tools such as MS Team, Cisco Webex, Zoom, etc. and support the features of those tools.

o Monitor Arms -  Stand and/or clamp-style? 
EPC Response: There should be options for both.

14.) Is it possible to get an extension on the timeline? This looks doable, but there are several resources and teams that need to be coordinated. 

14a.) Yes. The new deadline for submittals will be 2:00 p.m. Wednesday October 29, 2025. 

15.) Is there a preferred OEM for any of the hardware? 

15a.) Please refer to the RFP; the hardware requirements are clearly listed along with the approved hardware brands. 

16.) What is currently used to image laptops an PCs?

16a.) MECM, but we are moving to AutoPilot as noted in the RFP. 

17.) How long does it take for the current system to image laptops and PCs?

17a.) There is not an exact answer for this question as there are many variables that would influence the time required. We typically see between 65-90 minutes depending on the task sequences involved. 

18.) Are there any post-imaging steps required? If so, please provide details. 

18a.) The details of what is required are noted in the RFP under Deployment and Provisioning Services.

19.) Are kitting services required? 

19a.) Not required but it can be an option. We have received the hardware in “kits” but also in separate boxes as well. Not every machine that is purchased for an existing employee will require a full “kit”, but may be needed for a new employee.

20.) Are users primarily in Customer-offices, remote or hybrid? If hybrid, what percentage of users are remote? 

20a.) We have hybrid users, but for the PC refreshes, they will be in an office or will pick up the hardware from the office. There will be no need to visit user homes or the like. 

21.) How many PCs and laptops are to be deployed per month? 

21a.) This can vary greatly depending on the department and the time of the year. Historically, we have deployed the refresh for any particular year over an 8-month period starting each February and wrapping up by the end of September. Thus, the numbers per month are not fixed.

22.) For recycling/disposal services, will the Customer hold the equipment until a pickup can be scheduled? 

22a.) Yes; we have staging areas where the hardware to be decommissioned can be stored until pickup is arranged. 

23.) Will equipment be located in one location, and if so, what’s the location? If multiple locations, what are the locations? 

23a.) If what is meant is in what locations will the equipment be deployed—then it will be potentially every office in the county. A list of locations can be found on the El Paso County website.

24.) Would the pickup have a minimum of 100 devices? 

24a.) We can store devices until we reach 100, if that is a “minimum” number that can be handled per pickup. If something else is meant, then please clarify. 

25.) Is the County interested in resale of used equipment? 

25a.) Provided the hard drives can be securely wiped with a certificate of secure wiping, then yes we would. We have used this method to offset the cost of decommissioning in the past. 

26.) 1. Can El Paso County confirm whether it will accept proposals that leverage the terms and conditions of cooperative purchasing agreements such as MHEC or NASPO, and whether an award under one of these agreements will be governed by the selected. 2. If a proposal leverages the terms and conditions of a cooperative purchasing agreement such as MHEC or NASPO, is it still necessary for the vendor to submit formal exceptions to the RFP’s standard terms and conditions? Or will acceptance of the cooperative framework be deemed sufficient to override conflicting provisions? Additionally, will El Paso County accept pricing as established under the cooperative agreement without requiring further justification or renegotiation?

26a.) The purpose of this solicitation is to award an El Paso County contract for the services detailed in the RFP. Said contract will have terms and conditions as shown in Attachment B – Sample Professional Services Agreement. Vendors that wish to request exceptions to these terms and conditions will need to do so using the sample agreement and Exhibit 1 – Exceptions form in the RFP. Existing cooperative contracts will not be referenced or included in this potential forthcoming contract. Pricing must be provided in response to the items requested in the scope of work of the RFP, not from an existing agreement. 


27.) 3. Is utilization of UpdateMyPC a requirement for vendor, as it regards to the patching and updating of 3rd party (non-Microsoft) applications? 4. As it relates to endpoint management and provisioning via InTune/Autopilot, are Group Tags being utilized? If so, how many distinct Group Tags are being used? 5. Would the County allow for modifications to Attachment D Pricing Sheet? 6. Will the County provide an unlocked version of the Services Agreement for redlining purposes? 7. Will the County provide an unlocked version of RFP-25-088 - End Point Hardware and Lifecycle Services - Final?

27a.) Please see responses to each question below. 

Is utilization of UpdateMyPC a requirement for vendor, as it regards to the patching and updating of 3rd party (non-Microsoft) applications? 
EPC Response: Not necessarily, but it is what EPC is currently using to patch third party applications. If there are other options, we would certainly be willing to discuss, but we need to be able to patch/update applications like (not all inclusive) Adobe, Firefox, Chrome, etc.

As it relates to endpoint management and provisioning via InTune/Autopilot, are Group Tags being utilized? If so, how many distinct Group Tags are being used? 
EPC Response: Given that we have just deployed both tools and they are in their infancy, we have not started utilizing any of the advanced features such as group tags, but are open to discussing them.

Would the County allow for modifications to Attachment D Pricing Sheet? 6. Will the County provide an unlocked version of the Services Agreement for redlining purposes? 7. Will the County provide an unlocked version of RFP-25-088 - End Point Hardware and Lifecycle Services - Final? 
EPC Response: RFP-25-088 – End Point Hardware and Lifecycle Services – Final and required documents therein can be edited by converting to a PDF or printing and entering information by hand. Redlines/contract exceptions must be provided in conjunction with Exhibit 1 – Exceptions Form in the RFP.

28.) Is training oriented toward EPC IT staff or users?

28a.) EPC IT Staff.  

29.) How many users (total and max concurrent) will be using the thin client infrastructure?

29a.) Please see responses to question 5. 

30.) Will there be any info on the applications needed for sizing of the environment? 
30a.) 

31.) Is there any process for fixed asset tracking with EPC accounting that needs to be considered? 

31a.) We currently use ServiceNow to hold the asset data and currently use bar coded stickers affixed to the equipment. Obviously, Active Directory also plays a role in this.

32.) Are there any existing programs in place with EPC for discounts that need to be considered? 

32a.) Yes; as noted in the RFP, we currently have an employee discount program in place for equipment purchases and this would need to be continued.

33.) Is an existing asset tagging platform in place with EPC for discounts that need to be considered? 

33a.) Please see response to questions 31 and 32. 

34.) Will vendor be given access to AutoPilot and Intune to manage configurations?

34a.) Yes; this is the intent of the RFP to have the awarded vendor manage both with input from EPC. As noted, we are seeking end to end management of the endpoints to include deployment (AuotPilot) and maintenance/patching (Intune).


35.) Are there any current SLA requirements for break/fix services?

35a.)  Please see response to questions 9. 

Signature below indicates that applicant has read all the information provided above and agrees to comply in full. This addendum is considered as a section of the Request for Proposal and therefore, this signed document shall become considered and fully submitted with the original package.
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